
 
GULF BREEZE CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
 

NOVEMBER 21, 2016 
          MONDAY, 6:30 P.M. 

  COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 

  
1. ROLL CALL, INVOCATION, AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 

November 7, 2016, Regular Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2016, Community Redevelopment Agency Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 
November 7, 2016, Gulf Breeze Financial Services Board of Directors Meeting Minutes  

 
3. PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 

 
4. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES   
 
 Ordinance No. 08-16   Amending Section 19-59(e) clarifying language relating 
      to sewer connection to residences 

      FIRST READING  
 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Resolution No. 39-16   Approving Year End Budget Adjustments for FY2016 

  
5. ACTION AGENDA ITEMS 
 

A. Special Event Application for Holiday Day Parade 
 

B. Placement of breakwater at or near Deadman’s Island  
 
C. Development Review Board Recommendation: 

   Mateer Properties, LLC 
   67 Baybridge Drive 
   Construction of Office Building 
 
 

D. Public Services Department purchase of public safety radios  



Regular Meeting Agenda 
November 21, 2016 
Page 2 
 

If any person decides to appeal any decisions made with respect to any matter considered at this meeting 
or public hearing, such person may need to insure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record 
includes the testimony and any evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. The public is invited to comment 
on matters before the City Council upon seeking and receiving recognition from the Chair.   If you are a person 
with a disability who needs accommodation in order to participate in a public hearing you are entitled to the 
provision of certain assistance.  Please contact the City Clerk’s office at (850) 934-5115 or at 1070 Shoreline 
Drive, Gulf Breeze at least one (1) week prior to the date of the public hearing. 
 
 

 
E. Request for Qualifications for design services related to Eastern Region Stormwater 

Project  
 

F. Public Services Department purchase of Chevrolet 1500 Truck  
 
G. Installation of natural gas generator by Bill Smith Electric, Inc.   

 
H. Gulf Breeze Police Department purchase of 2016 GMC Sierra Truck 
 
I. Gulf Breeze Police Department purchase of five Heartsine 450P Automatic External 

Defibrillators  
 
J. WAS Consultants invoice number 2971 in the amount of $11,000  
 
K. Field Operations office trailer rental 
 
 

  
6. NEW ITEMS  
 
7. INFORMATION ITEMS  
 
8. PUBLIC FORUM  

 
9. ADJOURNMENT 
 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE                                             
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA  

 

Regular	Council	Minutes																											November	7,	2016	 Page	1	
 

The 1,306th Regular Meeting of the Gulf Breeze City Council, Gulf Breeze, Florida, was held at 
Gulf Breeze City Hall on Monday, November 7, 2016, at 6:30 p.m.  
 
ROLL CALL, INVOCATION, AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
Upon call of the roll the following Councilmembers were present:   Councilwoman Renee 
Bookout, Mayor Matt Dannheisser, Councilwoman Cherry Fitch, Mayor Pro Tem Joseph B. 
Henderson, and Councilman David G. Landfair.   
 
The City Clerk gave the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to approve the minutes from the October 17, 2016, 
Regular meeting.  Councilman Landfair seconded. The vote for approval was unanimous. 
 
PRESENTATION AND PROCLAMATIONS:    
 
Mayor Dannheisser officially swore in Richard Hawthorne as Chief of Police and Sharon 
Armstrong as Deputy Chief of Police.    
 
RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES:   None 
 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEM(S): 
 

A. Change Order for reclaimed elevated tank for addition of a telecommunications corral  
 
Reference: Assistant Director of Public Services memo dated 10/27/16 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council approve the change order to the reclaimed 
elevated tank project being constructed by Phoenix Fabricators and Erectors, Inc. for the 
addition of a telecommunications corral at a cost of $15,081. 

  
B. Madura Road emergency water main repair and fire hydrant replacement  

Reference: Assistant Director of Public Services memo dated 10/27/16 

Recommendation: That the City Council approve the Madura Road emergency water 
main repair and fire hydrant replacement by Utility Service Company in the amount of 
$24,248.93. 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE                                             
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA  

 

Regular	Council	Minutes																											November	7,	2016	 Page	2	
 

C. Appointment to South Santa Rosa Utility System Board  
 
Reference: City Manager memo dated 10/27/16 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council appoint Mr. Dick Baker to the South Santa 
Rosa Utility System Board effective the first meeting in December. 
 

D. South Santa Rosa Utility Board Recommendations 
 
Reference: City Manager memo dated 10/27/16 
 

I. Holiday Builders Impact Fee Refund Request 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council refund Holiday Builders the impact fee down 
payment for 28 lots ($36,400) less a 2% processing fee ($728) for a total refund $35,762. 

 
II. West Course Irrigation Renovation Bid 

 
1) Recommendation: That the City Council approve the expenditure of $411,050 for the 

West Course irrigation renovation project of holes 1-9 and 10 & 18 awarded to Eagle Golf 
& Athletics Inc.   

 
2) Recommendation: That the City Council approve the additional expenditure of $9,625 

for projected missing head & swing arm assemblies to be used only as required through the 
duration of the project.    
 

III. West Course Pond Repair 
 

Recommendation: That the City Council approve Utility Service Company to complete 
the pond 2 repair at a cost of $15,000, funded from budgeted repairs and maintenance. 

  
E. Resurfacing and Drainage F/Y 2016 & 2017 

 
Reference: City Manager memo dated 10/27/16 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council approve the following recommendations for 
resurfacing projects: 
 

1. The expenditure of reserve funds in an amount not to exceed $397,000 for budgeted 
resurfacing not completed in F/Y 2016 

2. Approve the proposed fee of $3,750 from Jehle-Halstead, Inc. for the resurfacing design of 
Dracena Way, Silverthorne Road, Kevin Drive, and Stearns Street, 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE                                             
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA  

 

Regular	Council	Minutes																											November	7,	2016	 Page	3	
 

3. Authorization to advertise the Request for Qualifications for the Gilmore Drive, San Carlos 
Avenue, and Hampton Street paving project, and 

4. Authorization to advertise the Request for Qualifications for the Bear Drive drainage and 
paving project. 
 

F. Declaration and Sale of Surplus Property 
 
Reference: Acting Deputy Chief of Police memo dated 10/6/16 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council declare a 2003 Lexus Convertible 
Vin#JTHFN48Y8300337748 as surplus property and sale the vehicle on the “Govdeals” 
auction site. 

 
G. Purchase of two 2017 Ford Explorers for the Gulf Breeze Police Department 

 
Reference: Chief of Police memo dated 10/28/16 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council approve the purchase of two fully equipped 
2017 Ford Explorers. 
 

H. Special event application for the City of Gulf Breeze – Holiday Parade 
 
Reference: Assistant to City Manager memo dated 10/24/16 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council approve the special event application for the 
2016 Gulf Breeze Holiday Parade. 

 
I. Volunteer Firefighter stipend increase   

 
Reference: Fire Chief memo dated 10/27/16 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council approve a $50 dollar increase in the monthly 
stipend payment that qualifying volunteer firefighters receive.  
 

J. Copier equipment purchase and service agreement  
 
Reference: Community Services memo dated 10/28/16 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council approve the purchase agreement with Office 
Technologies for the price of $36,505 and also approve the related service contract. 
 
 
 

 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE                                             
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA  

 

Regular	Council	Minutes																											November	7,	2016	 Page	4	
 

K. Invoice for Legal Services provided by Calhoun, Collister & Parham, Inc. 
 
Reference: City Clerk’s memo dated 10/27/16 
Recommendation: That the City Council approve payment to Calhoun, Collister & 
Parham, Inc., in the amount of $9,461 and 

 
L. Invoice for Legal Services provided by Smolker, Bartlett, Loeb, Hinds and Sheppard, 

P.A. 

Reference: City Clerk’s memo dated 10/26/16 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council approve payment of invoice no. 96668 in the 
amount of $2,687.50 to Smolker, Bartlett, Loeb, Hinds and Sheppard, P.A. 
 

M. Invoice for Legal Services provided by Galloway/Johnson/Tompkins/Burr and Smith 
 
Reference: City Clerk’s memo dated 10/26/16 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council approve payment of invoice no. 338422 in the 
amount of $16,062.90 to Galloway/Johnson/Tompkins/Burr and Smith 
 

Councilman Landfair made a motion to approve consent agenda items A through M.  Mayor Pro 
Tem Henderson seconded. The vote for approval was unanimous. 
 
ACTION ITEMS:   
 

A. Giving’s a Breeze project implementation 
 
Reference: Assistant to City Manager memo dated 10/25/16 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council approve the direct supervision of the sister 
project for “Better Way to Give” in Gulf Breeze, “Giving’s a Breeze”, to Gulf Breeze High 
School students. 

 
Gulf Breeze High School students and Future Business Leaders of America (FBLA), William 
Welch and Keegan Luchsinger presented the project “Giving’s a Breeze” to the City Council.   
 
Councilman Landfair made a motion to approve staff’s recommendation.  Councilwoman Fitch 
seconded. The vote for approval was 4-1 with Mayor Pro Tem Henderson dissenting.    

 
 
 
 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE                                             
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA  

 

Regular	Council	Minutes																											November	7,	2016	 Page	5	
 

B. Fireworks show for Autumn Breezes Fall Festival 
 
Reference: Fire Chief memo dated 10/27/16 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council authorize the Fire Chief to contract with Pyro 
Shows for the fireworks show for the Autumn Breezes Fall Festival in the amount of 
$8,000. 

 
Councilwoman Bookout made a motion to approve staff’s recommendation subject to legal sign 
off by the City Attorney. Councilwoman Fitch seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous. 
 
NEW ITEMS:   None 
 
NEW BUSINESS:   
 

A. Gulf Breeze Futball Club use of 3-4 acres Tiger Point West Golf Course property for 
practice. 
 
Reference: Verbal report by City Manager 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council approve a letter of agreement between the 
City and the Gulf Breeze Futball Club for temporary use of 3-4 acres of the west golf 
course for practices.  
 

Councilman Landfair made a motion to approve staff’s recommendation.  Councilwoman 
Bookout seconded. The vote for approval was unanimous. 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS:    Nathan Ford discussed the schedule for the November 19th 
Autumn Breezes event. 
 
PUBLIC FORUM:      

The following citizens addressed the City Council: 
 
Noah Berry, 6 Cadiz, Alex Bell, 6 San Carlos and Robert Turpin, 2 Madrid Avenue. 
Terry Mead, 102 Poinciana, submitted to the City Clerk a FOIA request.  
 
 
 
 
 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE                                             
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA  

 

Regular	Council	Minutes																											November	7,	2016	 Page	6	
 

Councilwoman Bookout requested copy of the property assessment notice for Tiger Point Golf 
Course.  The City Manager advised he would send out a copy when completed. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Henderson, requested a copy of the annual performance review of the Golf 
Course.  
 
Mayor Dannheisser requested that staff contact an environmental consultant to immediately 
evaluate the Isthmus at Deadman’s Island.  The Mayor would like an environmental specialist to 
evaluate the break in the Isthmus and advise if an emergency situation exists and if so, should the 
City obtain an expedited permit for emergency restoration.     
 
ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Dannheisser adjourned the meeting at 7:25 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

Leslie A. Guyer, City Clerk    Matt E. Dannheisser, Mayor 



MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE 
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY	

 

CRA	Board	of	Directors	Minutes	 	 	 November	7,	2016	 Page	1	
 
 
 

A meeting of the Board of Directors for the Community Redevelopment Agency, Gulf Breeze, 
Florida, was convened at the Gulf Breeze City Hall Council Chambers on Monday, November 7, 
2016, at 7:01 p.m.   
 
The following members were present: Councilwoman Renee Bookout, Councilwoman Cherry 
Fitch, and Mayor Matt Dannheisser.  Mayor Pro Tem Joseph B. Henderson, and Councilman 
David G. Landfair. 
  
The purpose of the meeting was for the Board of Directors of the Community Redevelopment 
Agency to consider the following:  
 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEM:* 
 

A. Payment of invoice for file 5175 in the amount of $14,298 for legal services provided by Calhoun, 
Collister & Parham, Inc. 

 
Reference: City Clerk’s memo dated 10/27/16 
  
Recommendation: That The City Council approve payment to Calhoun, Collister & Parham, 
Inc., in the amount of $14,298. 

Councilwoman Fitch made a motion to approve Staff’s recommendations.  Councilman 
Landfair seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous. 
 
ACTION ITEMS:   
 
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS:   
 
PUBLIC FORUM:  
 
ADJOURNMENT:  Mayor Dannheisser adjourned the meeting at 7:01 p.m. 
 
 
    
       
Leslie A. Guyer, City Clerk  Matt E. Dannheisser, Mayor 
 



 
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE 

GULF BREEZE FINANCIAL SERVICES 
 

GBFS	Board	of	Directors	Minutes	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 November	7,	2016	 Page	1	
 
 
 

 
A meeting of the Board of Directors for the Gulf Breeze Financial Services, Gulf Breeze, Florida, 
was convened at the Gulf Breeze City Hall Council Chambers on Monday, November 7, 2016, at 
7:02 p.m.   
 
The following members were present: Councilwoman Renee Bookout, Councilwoman Cherry 
Fitch, Mayor Matt Dannheisser, Mayor Pro Tem Joseph B. Henderson, and Councilman David G. 
Landfair.   
    
The purpose of the meeting was for the Board of Directors of the Gulf Breeze Financial Services to 
consider the following:  
 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
 

A. Invoice for Legal Services provided by Bryant Miller Olive P.A. 

Reference: City Clerk’s memo dated 10/27/16 

Recommendation: That the City Council meet as the Board of Directors of Gulf Breeze 
Financial Services (GBFS) on November 7, 2016, to approve payment of invoice no. 63290 in 
the amount of $11,587.50 to Bryant Miller Olive P.A. 

B. Invoice for Legal Services provided by Jenner & Block LLP 
 

Reference: City Clerk’s memo dated 10/26/16 

Recommendation: That the City Council meet at the Board of Directors of Gulf Breeze 
Financial Services (GBFS) on November 7, 2016, to approve payment of invoice no.  
9375022 in the amount of $1,703.25 to Jenner & Block LLP 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to approve staff’s consent agenda items A and B.   
Councilman Landfair seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous.   

 
ACTION ITEMS:  None 
 
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS:  None  
 
PUBLIC FORUM: None 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  Mayor Dannheisser adjourned the meeting at 7:02 p.m.    
   
 
 
   

 
Leslie A. Guyer, City Clerk  Matt E. Dannheisser, Mayor 

































































































































MINUTES 
  DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD 

NOVEMBER 8, 2016 
TUESDAY………..6:30 P.M. 

CITY HALL OF GULF BREEZE 
 

PRESENT    ABSENT   STAFF  
George Williams   Maggie Thorp   Shane Carmichael  
Joseph Henderson   Bill Clark   Stephanie Lucas  
John Adams    Ramsey Landry    
Laverne Baker  
  
  

The meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Chairman George Williams.  
 
The City Clerk called roll and gave the invocation and pledge of allegiance. 
 
After Roll Call, a motion was made by Mr. Adams to approve the October 4, 2016, minutes as 
written. Mayor Pro Tem Henderson seconded the motion.  The October 4, 2016, minutes were 
approved unanimously.    
 
Mr. Williams asked if any members had any exparte communications regarding the pending case.  
There were none.   
 
PROJECT NUMBER: JDPL2-16-0010:  ERIC BLANCHARD, P.O. BOX 683, GRAYSON, 
GEORGIA 30017, REQUEST TO REPLACE AN EXISTING RESIDENTIAL DOCKING 
FACILITY WITH AN ACCESS PIER, TERMINAL PLATFORM, TWO FINGER PIERS AND 
A COVERED SLIP LOCATED AT 208 NORTHCLIFFE DRIVE.   
 
Jason Taylor, Wetland Sciences, 3308 Gulf Beach Hwy, appeared before the Board on behalf of the 
applicants.  Mr. Taylor presented the project and answered questions.      
 
Shane Carmichael, Director of Community Services, presented the staff report to the Board and 
answered questions.   
 
Mr. Adams made a motion to approve the project as submitted.  Mayor Pro Tem Henderson 
seconded.  The vote to approve the project was unanimous.   
 
PROJECT NO. JCRL3-16-0003:   MATEER PROPERTIES, LLC, 1032 FT. PICKENS 
ROAD, PENSACOLA BEACH, FLORIDA, REQUEST TO CONSTRUCT A TWO-STORY 
PROFESSIONAL OFFICE BUILDING AT 67 BAYBRIDGE DRIVE.   
 
Greg Uzdevenes, 918 Cervantes Street, Pensacola, Florida 32501, appeared before the Board on 
behalf of the applicants.  Mr. Uzdevenes presented the project and answered questions.    
 
Shane Carmichael, Director of Community Services, presented the staff report to the Board and 
answered questions.   
 
The Board expressed concerns about the stormwater plan.  Mr. Carmichael stated that the City’s 
engineer reviewed the project and determined that it met the three requirements listed in the Land 
Development Code to qualify for the waiver by the City Manager.  Mayor Pro Tem Henderson said 
that he would bring it up to the City Council when they consider the project at its next meeting.  Mr. 



DRB Minutes 
November 8, 2016 
Page 2 

 
 

Williams suggested that Mr. Uzdevenes locate the original stormwater plans should the Council have 
questions.   
 
Mr. Adams made a motion to approve the project as submitted. Mayor Pro Tem Henderson 
seconded.  The vote to approve the project was unanimous.   
 
Mr. Carmichael advised the Board that the project is Level III and will go before the City Council for 
final approval on November 21, 2016. 
 
OPEN FORUM: None  
 
NEW INFORMATION: None 
 
ADJOURNMENT:   The meeting was adjourned at 6:50 p.m.   
 
      ATTESTED TO: 
 

 
____________________________________  
Stephanie D. Lucas, City Clerk 
 



 
 
 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

PROJECT NO:   JCRL3-16-0003 
 
APPLICATION DATE:  09/30/2016 
 
DESCRIPTION:  NEW PROFESSIONAL OFFICE BUILDING - LIII 

 
PROJECT LOCATION:  67 BAYBRIDGE DR 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PARCEL INFORMATION: SRC PARCEL ID: 05-3S-29-0215-00100-0060 
    SUBDIVISION: BAYBRIDGE 
    LOT / BLOCK: 6 / 1 
    SIZE (ACRES): .03 
    ZONING:  C1 
    FLU:   C 
    MISC:   MIXED USE COMPLEX 
 
 
 

 



 
 
PROPERTY OWNER:  MATEER PROPERTIES LLC 
    1032 FT PICKENS RD 
    PENSACOLA BEACH, FL 32561 
    (850) 916 8886 
 
 
AGENT:    GREGORY R. UZDEVENES 
    918 E CERVANTES ST 
    PENSACOLA, FL 32501 
    (850) 232 3810 
 
 
PROJECT DIMENSIONS:  28.0 FT L X 45.0 FT W X 27.0 FT H 
 
 
STAFF COMMENTS:  
 

THE APPLICANT IS REQUESTING TO CONSTRUCT A TWO-STORY 
PROFESSIONAL OFFICE BUILDING ON LOT 6, BLOCK 1, BAYBRIDGE 
SUBDIVISION.  ACCORDING TO DRAWINGS SUBMITTED BY THE APPLICANT’S 
AGENT, GREGORY R. UZDEVENES, THE BUILDING MEASURES APPROXIMATELY 
28.0 FT L X 45.0 W X 27.0 FT H AND 2,642 S.F. IN AREA.  SINCE THE BUILDING IS 
LOCATED IN A PREAPPROVED MIXED USE DEVELOPMENT, THE BUILDING WILL 
BE DESIGNED TO MATCH THE EXISTING BUILDINGS IN THE COMPLEX.  IN FACT, 
THE APPLICANT APPLIED FOR AND RECEIVED A VARIANCE FROM THE CITY 
COUNCIL TO WAIVE THE ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN STANDARDS SO THAT IT 
WOULD BLEND WITH THE EXISTING BUILDINGS. 
 
 



STAFF HAS REVIEWED THE PROJECT AND OFFERS THE FOLLOWING 
COMMENTS: 

 
 
ZONING AND LAND USE (COMMNET BY C. CARMICHAEL) 
 

THE PARCEL OF PROPERTY HAS A ZONING DESIGNATION OF C1 
(COMMERCIAL) AND A FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION OF C (COMMERCIAL).  
BASED ON THESE DESIGNATIONS, A PROFESSIONAL OFFICE BUILDING IS 
PROPER USE OF THE PROPERTY. 

 
 

CONCURRENCY  (COMMENT BY HSA CONSULTING GROUP) 
 

ACCORDING TO A REPORT PREPARED BY HSA CONSULTING GROUP, 
INC. ON OCTOBER 20, 2016 “ALL THE NECESSARY FACILITIES ARE CURRENTLY 
AVAILABLE TO ACCOMMODATE THE IMPACTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT AT THE ADOPTED LEVEL OF SERVICE STANDARDS, 
ASSUMING THAT THE DRAINAGE LEVEL OF SERVICE STANDARD IS MET, AS 
REQUIRED BY THE CITY'S LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS.” 

 
 

PARKING   (COMMENT BY C. CARMICHAEL) 
 

BASED ON SECTION 24-51 OF THE CITY’S LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE 
(LDC), THE PROJECT IS REQUIRED TO HAVE ONE PARKING SPACE FOR EACH 
300 S.F. OF USABLE FLOOR SPACE.  BASED ON THE 1,996 S.F. OF USABLE 
FLOOR AREA OF THE PROPOSED BUILDING, THEY ARE REQUIRED TO PROVIDE 
SEVEN SPACES.  ACCORDING TO THEIR PLANS, THE COMPLEX HAS 163 
SHARED SPACES AND BASED ON THE EXISTING FLOOR AREA OF THE ENTIRE 
COMPLEX, THEY ARE REQUIRED TO HAVE 141 SPACES.  BASED ON THESE 
FIGURES, THERE ARE 24 SURPLUS PARKING SPACES; THEREFORE, THERE IS 
AMPLE PARKING TO MEET REQUIREMENT OF SEVEN ADDITIONAL SPACES. 

 
 

HEIGHT   (COMMENT BY C. CARMICHAEL) 

 
SECTION 21-162 OF THE LDC ESTABLISHES A MAXIMUM BUILDING 

HEIGHT OF 35 FT.  SHEET 3 (ELEVATIONS) OF THEIR SUBMITTAL, INDICATE A 
BUILDING OF HEIGHT OF 27 FT. 

 
 

LANDSCAPING  (COMMENT BY C. CARMICHAEL) 
 

PER THE LDC, A MINIMUM OF FIVE PERCENT OF THE TOTAL DEVELOPED 
AREA OF ANY PARCEL OR PROPERTY SHALL BE DEVOTED TO LANDSCAPING.  
THE DEVELOPED AREA IS APPROXIMATELY 1,307 S.F. AND FIVE PERCENT 
EQUATES TO 66 S.F.  THE PLANS INDICATE A NEW HEDGE ROW MEASURING 
APPROXIMATELY 105 S.F IN AREA. 

 
 



STORMWATER  (COMMENT BY T. LAMBERT) 
 

ACCORDING TO THE LDC, THE CITY MANAGER MAY WAIVE THE 
REQUIREMENTS OF THE WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN.  AS THE PROJECT FOR 
THE REFERENCED LOCATION IN BAYBRIDGE CONDOMINIUMS IS LESS THAN 
1,500 SQUARE FEET OF IMPERVIOUS AREA, IS BEING BUILT INTO AN EXISTING 
PLATTED DEVELOPMENT, AND ALL ACCESS ROADWAY, DRIVEWAY AND 
PARKING AREAS COMPLETED, IT APPEARS TO BE A CANDIDATE FOR THIS 
WAIVER. 
 

IN MY OPINION, THE PROJECT MEETS THE THREE REQUIREMENTS 
LISTED IN THE LDC TO QUALIFY FOR THE WAIVER.  THE PROJECT WILL NOT 
SIGNIFICANTLY CHANGE THE RATE OR VOLUME OF RUNOFF AND WILL NOT 
CONTRIBUTE TO DEGRADATION OF ENVIRONMENTALLY SENSITIVE AREAS OR 
WATER QUALITY.  THE SIZE OF THE PROJECT INDICATES ITS EFFECT WILL BE 
NEGLIGIBLE. 
 

ANOTHER FACTOR NOT PART OF THE WAIVER, BUT FOREMOST IN THE 
MINDS OF THE CITIZENS IS THE ISSUE OF FLOODING.  AS THE PROPERTY IS 
LESS THAN 150 FEET FROM THE BAY AND TOPOGRAPHY DOES NOT INDICATE 
IMPEDIMENTS TO DRAINAGE, THE POSSIBILITY OF FLOODING DOWNSTREAM 
PROPERTIES IS ALSO NEGLIGIBLE. 

  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

PROVIDED THAT THE PROJECT RECEIVES THE STORMWATER WAVIER, 
IT APPEARS TO MEET THE INTENT OF THE CITY’S LDC AND STAFF 
RECOMMENDS THAT THE DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD APPROVE THE 
PROJECT AS SUBMITTED. 

 






























































































































































	November 21 2016 Agenda
	November 7 2016 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
	November 7 CRA MEETING MINUTES
	November 7 2016 GBFS Minutes
	Ordinance 08 - 16 Amending Section 19-59
	Resolution 39-16 FY 2016 Budget Adjustments
	Holiday Parade - Special Event Application
	Deadman Island Breakwater
	Radio Purchases Public Services
	DRB Recommendations
	November 8 2016 DRB Minutes
	Mateer - Staff Report
	Mateer - Hearing Notice
	Mateer Plans
	Mateer Application

	Request for Qualifications - Plant Hill Design
	Truck Purchase - Utilities
	Generator Bid - Water Plan
	Truck Purchase - PD
	AED Purchase
	WAS Consultants Invoice
	Field Ops Office Trailer

